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About This Update

This update is a summary of civil decisions of significance in
the consumer financial services industry from federal courts
throughout the United States that were released and made
available by Westlaw during the previous month. This update
is a complimentary service offered by Burr & Forman LLP and
is distributed each month via email. Individuals may subscribe/
unsubscribe to this monthly update by sending an email to
financialservices@burr.com.

About Burr & Forman LLP

Burr & Forman LLP is a Southeast regional firm with more
than 200 attorneys and offices in Alabama, Florida, Georgia,
Mississippi and Tennessee. The attorneys in Burr’s Financial
ServicesPractice Group centertheirpracticearoundrepresenting
banks, mortgage companies, credit card companies, finance
companies, debt buyers and debt collectors in both individual
and class/mass actions filed throughout the Southeast. These
lawsuits range from state common law and statutory claims
to claims for alleged violations of federal consumer protection
statutes. Burr has been selected as a “Go-to Law Firm” for
Financial Services Companies by American Lawyer Media and
one of Fortune Magazine’s “Go-To Law Firms of the World’s
Leading Companies.”
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SUPREME COURT
DECISIONS

No civil decisions of significance in the consumer finance
industry reported as of the date of publication.

2

RI

1STCIRCUIT
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No civil decisions of significance in the consumer finance
industry reported as of the date of publication.

2ND CIRCUIT
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No civil decisions of significance in the consumer finance
industry reported as of the date of publication.
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TRUTH IN LENDING ACT (ADEQUATE
DISCLOSURES)

Bowmer v. Novastar Mortg. Funding Trug010 WL
1816267 (E.D. Pa. May 5, 2010)

The plaintiff received a letter from the defendant
containing an offer to refinance her home. The plaintifi
then received a number of different Truth-in-Lending
Disclosure Statements with varying estimates on hg
estimated annual percentage rate and total finance char
In addition, the plaintiff received a document that listed
various non-refundable application costs.  After thd
plaintiff had paid off the mortgage, she sought a rescissid
on the mortgage transaction. When the transaction was 1
rescinded, the plaintiff brought suit against the defendai
and others under the Truth in Lending Act (TILA) seeking
rescission of her home mortgage financing transactiof
alleging that the disclosure statements she received we
inconsistent and unclear regarding her annual percental
rate and total finance charge and that the document listir
the non-refundable fees misrepresented her rescissi
rights. The defendant filed a motion to dismiss forufail

to state a claim pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(8)e T
court made two determinations. First, the court determing
that while the disclosure statements were inconsistent, th

were not intentionally misleading, and, therefore, the

disclosure statements were not inaccurate for TILA
purposes. Second, the court held that the document listi
the non-refundable fees did misrepresent the plaintiff|
rescission rights, and that the plaintiff had stated a cduse
action pursuant to the TILA. Accordingly, the court denied
the defendant's motion to dismiss.

TRUTH IN LENDING ACT (STATUTE OF
LIMITATIONS & ASSIGNEE LIABILITY)

Sherzer v. Homestar Mort. Ser2010 WL 1947042 (W.D.
Pa. May 7, 2010)

In 2004, the plaintiffs sought to refinance by taking glsin
mortgage on their home. Unbeknownst to the plaintiffg
they actually settled on two loans, both taken from on
lender and placed with a bank. One year later, in 2005, tf

plaintiffs refinanced the smaller of the two loans, taking &
mortgage on their home from another lending company.

On May 11, 2007, the bank and mortgagee both file
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rescinding the smaller of the two loans which they held, but
the plaintiffs still had two outstanding loans. The piffn
brought suit under the Truth in Lending Act (TILA) aad
number of state laws against all of the lenders, alleging that
the 2004 loan was improperly split into two loans, alihef
loans were not properly documented, and they were
assessed improper fees. The defendants filed a motion to
dismiss pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6), arguirag

the plaintiffs had released their claims when the smaller
loan was rescinded, the claim for rescission of the larger
loan under TILA was barred by the statute of repose, and
the bank, as an assignee, had no liability under TILA .
First, because the release barred claims "in whole or in
part” on the smaller loan, the court granted the motion to
dismiss only with respect to TILA violations premised on
the loan splitting. Second, the court also held that,
although the suit was not filed until after the three years
stipulated by TILA, because the plaintiffs gave notice of
rescission within the three year statute of repose and filed
their suit within one year of the date of notification, thei
claim for rescission was valid. Lastly, the court denied the
motion to dismiss on the defense that the bank was merely
an assignee, but granted the motion to dismiss to the extent
that the plaintiffs sought statutory damages and attorneys'
fees against the bank because TILA does not provide for
such damages against an assignee. Accordingly, the court
granted in part and denied in part the defendants’ motion to
dismiss.

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(DEFINITION OF "CONSUMER REPORTING
AGENCY")

Adams v. LexisNexis Risk & Info. Analytics Group, Inc.
2010 WL 1931135 (D.N.J. May 12, 2010)

Plaintiff alleged that the defendants sold a product that
helped debt collectors collect on delinquent accounts, and,
as a result, they were "consumer reporting agencies" as
defined by the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA). The
plaintiff alleged that the defendants violated numerous
restrictions imposed by the FCRA. In response, the
defendants filed a motion for a judgment on the pleadings
pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(c), arguing that the ywrbd
did not qualify as a "consumer report" (the defendants had
a disclaimer that came along with the product explicitly
stating that the product was not a consumer report), the
plaintiff failed to allege acts undertaken by each defendant,
the plaintiff failed to allege sufficient facts to support her
claims, and the plaintiff failed to allege facts to support her
characterization of defendants as resellers of consumer
reports under the FCRA. The court held that, because of
the broad definitions under the FCRA, the plaintiff
presented sufficient factual allegations that the product
qualified as a consumer report and that the defendants
qualified as consumer reporting agencies in spite of the fact
that the defendants stated that the product was not to be
used by anyone as a consumer report. Consequently, the
(Continued on page 3)
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court denied the defendants' motion for a judgment on th
issue. However, the court did grant the defendants' motig
with regard to the lack of factual allegations with regard t@
violations of 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1681b through 1681x.
Accordingly, the court granted in part and denied in paift
the defendants' motion.

-

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(NOTICE AND INITIAL COMMUNICATIONS,
DEFINITION OF "COMMUNICATION," &

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS)

Peterson v. Portfolio Recovery Assocs, L.L.Z010 WL
2015260 (D.N.J. May 19, 2010)

The defendant purchased a debt from a bank owed byl a

person of the same name as the plaintiff. In 2003, the

defendant sent a collection letter to an address at which the

plaintiff had never lived seeking collection of the debt. In

2007, the defendant made a series of phone calls to the

plaintiff and the plaintiff's parents, but the plaintiff dsoh

owing the debt. Later in 2008 and 2009, the defendant sgnt

collection letters to the plaintiff, and the plaintiff received
the letters. The plaintiff brought suit under the Fair Debf
Collection Practices Act (FDCPA) on June 3, 2009
alleging that the defendant had violated various portions ¢f
the FDCPA byi,inter alia, failing to provide a validation

notice after the initial communication with the plaintiff.
The defendant moved for summary judgment, arguing that
the 2003 letter contained the required notice and that the
plaintiff's claims were barred by the statute of limitations
The plaintiff cross-moved for partial summary judgment
arguing that the 2003 letter was not a communication undgr
the FDCPA because the letter had not been mailed to him.
The court determined that: (1) the 2003 letter was not [a
communication with the plaintiff because the letter had
been mailed to a third party's address to which the plaintiff
had no connection; (2) by the defendant's own admission,

the 2007 telephone calls and 2008 and 2009 letters had not

included a validation notice; and (3) the plaintiff's claimg

were not time-barred because the limitations period had npt

run for the 2008 and 2009 letters. In addition, thertcou
noted that the plaintiff had withdrawn several claims and
that the defendant's "entirely new arguments” in support of
its motion for summary judgment in its reply brief waul
not be considered. Accordingly, the court granted in par
and denied in part the defendant's motion for summaiy
judgment and granted the plaintiff's motion for partial
summary judgment.

—
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FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(DEFINITION OF "DEBT COLLECTOR)

Ruggia v. Washington Mutua?010 WL 1957218 (E.D.
Va. May 13, 2010)

In April 2006, the plaintiffs executed a promissory noteé an
deed of trust which placed a security interest on their home.
The note was transferred from the original lender through
two other assignees to the final holder of the security
interest.  The plaintiffs began receiving demands for
payment in 2009 and were eventually notified they were in
default, their loan had been accelerated, and the date of the
foreclosure sale had been scheduled. The plaintiffs
responded by filing a lawsuit on October 29, 2009 against
the lender and the chain of assignees, alleging violations of
the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA). The
defendants filed a motion to dismiss pursuant to Fed. R.
Civ. P. 12(b)(6), alleging that they were not even debt
collectors as defined by the FDCPA. The court held that,
as mortgage servicing companies and trustees simply
exercising fiduciary duties, the defendants were not debt
collectors and fell outside of the ambit of the FDCPA.
Accordingly, the court granted the defendants’ motion to
dismiss.

FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT & REAL ESTATE
SETTLEMENT PROCEDURES ACT (STANDING,
CREDIT DISPUTES, QUALIFIED WRITTEN
REQUESTS & DUTY TO RESPOND TO DISPUTE
LETTERS)

Crews v. SunTrust Bank010 WL 1980098 (D. Md. May
14, 2010)

The plaintiff obtained a home equity line of credit from the
defendant bank and was late with several payments. The
defendant reported the late payments to three consumer
reporting agencies (CRAs). The plaintiff then filed two
dispute letters claiming that the late payments were a result
of an "address mix up.” In response to the letters, the
defendant investigated the disputes and sent letters
indicating that no change to the plaintiff's payment hjsto
was warranted. The defendant also notified the CRAs of
the dispute. The plaintiff subsequently filed suit untter t
(Continued on page 4)



Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA) and the Real Estate

Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA), alleging that th
defendant failed to notify the CRAs of disputes concernin
late payments, breached a duty to report the results of
investigations of his disputes, failed to adequately respor
to his dispute letters, and failed to request that the CRA
stop reporting the late payments. The defendant moved f
summary judgment. The court determined that: (1) th
plaintiff lacked standing to bring a claim under 15 U.S.C
8§ 1681s-2(a) because the statute does not provide a priv
right of action; (2) the plaintiff's claim under § 168A(®)

failed because all the evidence pointed to the fact that tf
defendant had in fact investigated and reported th
plaintiff's dispute letters to the CRAs; (3) the defendamt d
not violate 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(2)(B)(i) of RESPA beeaus
it responded in writing to the plaintiff's dispute lettarsd

the plaintiff himself acknowledged making late payments
and (4) the plaintiff had no evidence to support his clain
that the defendant violated 8§ 2605(e)(3) because tf
defendant did not send negative information to the CRA
during the sixty day period after receiving the plaintiff's
gualified written request letters. Accordingly, the courf
granted the defendant's motion for summary judgment.

TRUTH-IN-LENDING ACT (RESCISSION,
NECESSARY DISCLOSURES & STRICT

LIABILITY)

Larrabee v. Bank of Am., N.A2010 WL 2089260 (E.D.
Va. May 20, 2010)

The plaintiff obtained a mortgage loan in 2006 from the
defendants. The defendants provided a truth-in-lendin
disclosure which stated that all of the payments on the lod
were due approximately forty-five days after closing. In
2007, the plaintiff refinanced the loan. The defendant
provided the plaintiff with a notice of right to cancel/
rescission that stated "different lender" and also include
an "application fee disclosure" informing the plaintiff that
she would have to pay a $299.00 non-refundable applical
fee for the 2007 application. In 2009, the defendant
initiated foreclosure proceedings. The plaintiff attempte
rescission, and after the defendants declined absent a ten
of the amount due on the loan, filed suit under thehFint
Lending Act (TILA) seeking a declaratory judgment
confirming rescission and other relief. The defendant
moved to dismiss under Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6), agui
that the plaintiff had not met minimum pleading standards
that TILA should not be read in a hyper-technical and strig
fashion, and that their disclosures had been accurate. T
court determined that: (1) the Fourth Circuit, ag
exemplified in L Am. Mortg. Network, Inc. v. Shelto#86 F.

3d 815 (4th Cir. 2007), had adopted an approach th

required that TILA's requirements be “"reasonably
construed and equitably applied;" (2) no reasonabl
consumer would view the payment schedule as requirin

all payments be made forty-five days after the closing
given the projected interest; (3) the disclosure of "differen
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lender" was an accurate disclosure; but (4) the notice of
right to cancel and application fee disclosure were, it
appeared, in tension and could support a plausible claim.
Accordingly, the court granted in part and denied in part
the defendants' motion to dismiss.

STH CIRCUIT DECISIONS

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(DEFINITION OF "DEBT COLLECTOR" AND
HARASSMENT)

McGinnis v. Dodeka, LLC2010 WL 1856450 (E.D. Tex.
May 7, 2010)

The defendant debt collection agency, through various
assignments, came to own the debt of the plaintiff. The
defendants, a debt collection agency and a law firm, filed
an underlying claim against the plaintiff in state court that
incorrectly stated that she had entered into a contract with
the defendant, refused to pay the amount due under her
credit card contract, and owed the defendants over $6,000.
In response, the plaintiff brought suit under 15 U.S¥&.
1692d, 1692e(2)(A), 1692e(5), 1692¢e(10), and 169Zhef t
Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA). The
defendants filed a motion for judgment on the pleadings
under Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(c) in response to the plamtiff
claims. The court granted in part and denied in part
defendants' motion. Although the defendants had attached
an affidavit to the petition filed in state court which
adequately explained the assignment, the court held that the
plaintiff had stated a claim because the defendants did not
include the chain of assignment within the petition. The
court also held that the plaintiff had stated a claim by
alleging that she did not receive repeated demands,
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e(2)(A) and 1692e(10), and
was subjected to unfair practices under 15 U.S.C. 1692f.
However, the court dismissed the plaintiff's claim for
harassment, stating that the misleading statements did not
rise to harassment. Furthermore, the court held that the law
firm involved was not absolved from its liability as a tleb
collector simply because it was a law firm.



FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(IMPROPER VENUE)

Beeler-Lopez v. Dodeka, LL,2010 WL 1889428 (E.D.
Tex. May 7, 2010)

The defendants, a debt collection agency and a law firm
filed an underlying state court claim against the plaintift
seeking to collect a debt. The plaintiff then sued bot
parties in federal court, alleging that they filed the deb
collection action in the wrong venue in violation of the Fai
Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA). Another law firm
then took over as counsel in the original debt collection sulj
and the plaintiff amended her complaint to include them gs
a defendant in this case. The new law firm then moved {o
dismiss under Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6), arguing thadesi
they did not "bring" the claim in the improper venue, they
could not be held liable for the violation. The court held
that, under 15 U.S.C. § 1692i, the word "bring" meaas "t
sue; institute legal proceedings." Therefore, the couf
found that any violation of the FDCPA's venue provisior
occurs when the suit is first filed and continuing action in
an improper venue is not a violation of the FDCPA
Accordingly, the court granted the defendant's motion t
dismiss and declined to exercise supplemental jurisdictig
over the plaintiff's state law claims.
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FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT &
FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT (BONA FIDE
ERROR DEFENSE & SUMMARY JUDGMENT)

Liu v. Arrow Fin. Servs., LLC2010 WL 1994190 (S.D.
Tex. May 17, 2010)

The defendants, through counsel, filed suit in Texas state
court for breach of contract and a suit on a sworn account
arising out of an allegedly delinquent credit card debt owed
by the plaintiff. The plaintiff answered by denying thas sh
was the party responsible for the debt and brough
counterclaims against the defendants under the Fair Dgbt
Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), the Fair Credit
Reporting Act (FCRA), and Texas state law, allegintgr
alia, that the defendants had illegally sought to collect a
debt, had failed to have reasonable procedures to prevent
similar errors, and had reported false credit information to ja
consumer reporting agency (CRA). The defendants moved
for summary judgment, asserting a bona fide error defense
on the basis that their errors were clerical in nature, that
their procedures were in place to prevent such errors, and
that the plaintiff had not provided evidence showing th
they were responsible for the alleged credit reportin
errors. The plaintiff responded by arguing that the erro
were nonclerical and that the defendants lacked adequate
procedures to prevent errors like those complained of. The
court determined that: (1) the errors were arguably moie
than clerical because the defendants had made substantive
decisions about the debt accounts; (2) the defendants had
not shown that they had procedures designed to prevent the
errors at issue; but (3) the plaintiffs, as the defendads h

—

correctly argued, had not provided evidence supporting her
claim that the defendants were responsible for the
complained of credit reporting errors. Accordingly, the

court granted the defendants’ motion for summary
judgment as to the plaintiffs FCRA claim and denied the
motion as to the FDCPA claims.

FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT (PROXIMATE
CAUSE, INJURY, STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS &
PREEMPTION)

Reeves v. Equifax Info. Servs., L1 2010 WL 2036661
(S.D. Miss. May 20, 2010)

The plaintiff shared a name and seven out of nine numbers
of his social security number with a "dead beat." The
plaintiff and the dead beat did not share a birthday or an
address. In 2003, the plaintiff became aware that there
were inaccurate entries on his credit report as a result of
confusion between the plaintiff and the dead beat. The
plaintiff brought suit against the defendant and otherd, an
the case settled in 2005. As part of the settlement, the
defendant agreed to monitor and purge the plaintiff's credit
report. The plaintiff later discovered, however, that there
were several instances of the prior inaccurate entries and
other inaccurate entries appearing on the plaintiff's credit
report. The plaintiff, though counsel, repeatedly contacted
the defendant seeking correction of the errors. In 2009, the
plaintiff filed suit under the Fair Credit Reporting Act
(FCRA) and Mississippi libel law. The plaintiff moveaol f
partial summary judgment and the defendant cross-moved
for summary judgment, arguing that the plaintiff's federal
claims failed for lack of proximate cause and lack of injury
and that the state libel claim failed becausger alia, it

was preempted by the FCRA. The court determined that:
(1) there were multiple factual disputes relating to whether
the plaintiff had contacted the defendant since 2005
concerning his credit report; (2) the plaintiff had provided
sufficient evidence to allow a jury to determine whether the
plaintiff had suffered emotional distress; (3) there were
factual disputes concerning whether the inaccurate reports
had caused the plaintiff to be denied credit at a furniture
store; (4) there were factual disputes concerning whether
the inaccurate reports were the result of reckless actions,
which would justify punitive damages; (5) there were
factual disputes concerning whether the defendant had
illegally provided the plaintiff's credit reports to third
parties; but (5) the plaintiff's libel claim was preempted by
15 U.S.C. §1681h(e). Accordingly, the court denied the
plaintiff's motion for summary judgment and granted in
part and denied in part the defendant's motion for summary
judgment.



6TH CIRCUIT
DECISIONS
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FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(ATTORNEY'S FEES)

Dobina v. Carruther2010 WL 1796345 (N.D. Ohio May
3, 2010)

The plaintiff filed suit against the defendants for alleged
violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
(FDCPA), but, after some discussion, the parties ultimatel
were able to agree to a settlement. The settlement includ
a provision for reasonable attorney's fees and costs. T
plaintiff sought $350 as litigation costs and $6,525 a
attorney's fees for a total award of $6,875, while th¢
defendant argued that an award of $2,400, double the
amount of the underlying recovery, was appropriate, g
that, alternatively the plaintiff's requested award should
have been reduced by $1,240. The court determined that a
rate of $300 for the plaintiff's attorneys and $100 tfoer
paralegals was reasonable, stating that such rates were
consistent with those for experienced litigators in th
judicial district. Furthermore, the court determined that th
plaintiff's attorneys' fees were not duplicative and excessive
and the plaintiff was not entitled to recover for paralegal
billings for purely clerical tasks. Next, the court conédct
a lodestar calculation, which set the attorney's fees at
$4,860, and declined to make any adjustments. Finally, the
court awarded $350 as litigation costs.
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FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(PUBLISHING PRIVATE INFORMATION)
Pittenger v. John Soliday Fin. Group, L1010 WL
1856224 (N.D. Ohio May 10, 2010)

The plaintiff took out a loan to purchase a car in Februarny
2005 and eventually defaulted. The defendants, the owner
of the debt and a law firm, filed suit against the plairtiff
state court to collect the balance. As an attachment to the
complaint, the defendants filed a document that contained
the plaintiff's social security number, date of birth, ang
other personal information. In response, the plaintigffil

this claim, allegingjnter alia, that the defendants violated
the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA) by

disclosing the plaintiff's personal information. Bothtgar

filed motions for summary judgment. The court held that
the defendants did not violate the FDCPA by publishing
the plaintiff's social security number and other private
information in a relevant exhibit of a legitimate lawsuit,
reasoning that the natural consequence of such conduct was
not to harass within the meaning of the FDCPA.
Accordingly, the court granted the defendants' motion for
summary judgment and denied the plaintiff's motion for
summary judgment.

TRUTH-IN-LENDING ACT & REAL ESTATE
SETTLEMENT PROCEDURES ACT (NECESSARY
PLEADINGS & RESCISSION)

Sias v. Washington Mut. Bank, FR010 WL 2103448
(E.D. Tenn. May 20, 2010)

The plaintiffs obtained a mortgage loan from the defendant
lenders on June 28, 2007. On July 13, 2009, the (ffainti
attempted to rescind the loan by letter, but the defendants
declined rescission. The plaintiffs defaulted on the loan
and the defendant law firm then informed them by letter
that the defendants were accelerating the loan and initiating
foreclosure proceedings. The plaintiffs subsequently filed
suit under the Truth-in-Lending Act (TILA) and the Real
Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA), alleging that
the defendants had failed to provide the plaintiffs with
adequate numbers of notices of right to cancel and truth-in-
lending disclosure statements and that the defendants had
failed to adequately respond to a qualified written request
as defined by 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(2)(B). The defendants
moved for judgment on the pleadings under Fed. R. Civ. P.
12(c), arguing that they had fully complied with the
applicable laws and attaching copies of a notice of right to
cancel and truth-in-lending disclosure statement, both of
which were signed by the plaintiffs. The court, drawing on
Sibby v. Ownit Mortg. Solutions, Inc240 F. App'x 713
(6th Cir. 2007), found that the plaintiffs' written
acknowledgement of receipt of the disclosures created a
rebuttable presumption of delivery of the disclosures,
which the plaintiffs' averments to the contrary did not
overcome. The court further found that the plaintiffs had
failed to rescind within the three day rescission period, and
that all of the plaintiffs’ claims were based on their exercise
of a right to rescission at a time when they had no such
right.  Accordingly, the court found dismissal of the
plaintiffs' claims appropriate and granted the defendants'
motion for judgment on the pleadings.




7TH CIRCUIT
DECISIONS

TRUTH IN LENDING ACT (DEFINITION OF
REFINANCE)

Drake v. Ocwen Fin. Corp2010 WL 1910337 (N.D. III.
May 6, 2010)

In November 2006, the plaintiff purchased a home ir
lllinois using funds obtained by a loan secured by
mortgage on the home. In June 2008, the plaintiff begg
having difficulties making the mortgage payments and wg
informed by the defendant, a loan servicer, that it wal
offering special loan modifications for a limited time.
Several months later, the plaintiff applied for and receive

a loan modification upon the written promise that theré¢
would not be any fees or costs related to the offer.

However, after agreeing to the modification, the plaintiff
learned that the principal balance after the modificatio
included charges not disclosed in the modification
agreement. The plaintiff brought action under the Truth i
Lending Act (TILA). In response, the defendant filed 4
motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim pursuant t
Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6), arguing that TILA did not bpio

them because a loan modification was not a "refinancing”

under TILA. The court determined that, indeed, the loa
modification in this case was not a refinancing and
therefore, did not require the defendant to make any TILA
disclosures. The court reasoned that a refinancing requir
a cancellation of the original obligation and the substitutio
of a new obligation and the defendant's loan modificatio
did not replace the plaintiff's existing obligation withewn

one. Accordingly, the court granted the defendant's motig
to dismiss.
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No civil decisions of significance in the consumer finance

industry reported as of the date of publication.
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FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT (CONTRIBUTION
& INDEMNIFICATION)

Boatner v. Choicepoint Workplace Solutions, 010
WL 1838727 (D. Or. May 6, 2010)

The plaintiff applied for a job at a property management
company. The property management company, receiving
an inaccurate credit report from a consumer reporting
agency, rescinded the employment offer to the plaintiff. As
a result, the plaintiff brought suit against both the progp
management company and the consumer reporting agency
for violations of the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA
response to these allegations, the property management
company filed a cross-claim against the credit reporting
agency for contribution and indemnification. The
consumer reporting agency then moved under Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12(b)(6) to dismiss the property management company's
cross-claim, arguing that claims for contribution or
indemnification were not allowed under the FCRA. The
court determined that there was no right to either
contribution or indemnification under the "comprehensive
and detailed" FCRA statute. Furthermore, the court held
that there was no right to either remedy under federal
common law.  Accordingly, the court granted the
defendant's motion to dismiss.



FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT &
FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT (NECESSARY
PLEADINGS, STANDING & DEFINITION OF
"COMMUNICATION")

Horvath v. Premium Collection Servs., In2010 WL
1945717 (D. Ariz. May 13, 2010)

The plaintiff worked for a manufacturer and received
disability payments. After making these payments, th
employer determined that the plaintiff was not disabled an
demanded return of the payments.
and the employer hired the defendant to attempt to colle
the funds. The defendant sent the plaintiff collectior
letters, but the letters never reached the plaintiff becau

they were incorrectly addressed. The plaintiff later brought

suit under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA
and Arizona law, alleging that the defendant failed tq
provide required disclosures and later unlawfully reporte
information regarding his debt to a consumer reportin
agency (CRA). The defendant moved to dismiss pursug
to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6). The court determined tHat: (

the complaint did not show that the defendant had violatgd

FDCPA 15 U.S.C. § 1692c(b) because it did not allege th
the defendant had communicated with a specific thir
party; (2) the plaintiff's claims also failed under 15 U.S.C
§ 1681s-2(a) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA)
because the provision does not provide a private right

action; (3) the plaintiff's claims failed under FCRA § 16819
-2(b) because the plaintiff had not alleged that he hg

disputed the debt; and (4) the plaintiff's claim undef

FDCPA § 1692g failed because while he had alleged th
the defendant sent him a debt collection letter, he had,
the amended complaint, also alleged that he had ne\
received any of the letters, meaning that the letters were n
"communications" under the FDCPA. Accordingly, the
court granted the defendant's motion to dismiss an
declined to exercise supplemental jurisdiction over the staj
law claims.

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(DEFAULT JUDGMENT)

Johnson v. Nat'l Recovery Grp., L1 2010 WL 1992636
(E.D. Cal. May 14, 2010)

The plaintiff filed suit under the Fair Debt Collection
Practices Act (FDCPA) and California law, alleging thaf
the defendant placed illegal collection calls, contacted
third party about the debt, threatened to take legal actiq
against the plaintiff, and called the plaintiff at work despitg
knowing that the plaintiff could not accept such calls. Thd
defendant did not respond in any way. The plaintiff the
moved for default judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 55

The plaintiff refused,

seeking statutory damages, attorneys' fees, and filing a
service fees. The matter was referred to a magistrate jud
The magistrate, applying the factors from Eitel v. McCool
782 F.2d 1470 (9th Cir. 1986), recommended that th
plaintiff's motion for default judgment be denied, reasonin
that the complaint lacked sufficient factual support and di

not meet the pleading standards_of Ashcroft v. lqibab
S.Ct. 1937 (2009). The magistrate explained that: (1) the
plaintiff had failed to identify the called number, number of
calls, time of the calls and duration of the calls, content of
the conversations, the alleged debt, and the link between
the caller and the defendant; (2) the plaintiff had failed to
allege the manner of the defendant's contact with the third
party, how the plaintiff was aware of the communication,
how the defendant was identified as making the
communication, and the content of the communication; (3)
the plaintiff had failed to allege that the defendant's
communications to the plaintiff were false, deceptive, or
misleading, that the defendant had threatened legal action
that it could not take, or that the defendant did not intend
take that action; (4) the plaintiff had failed to allege that she
notified the defendant in writing of her inability to receive
telephone calls at work or how the defendant had acquired
that knowledge, the nature of the defendant's calls to her
workplace, or how the plaintiff knew that the defendant had
made said calls; and (5) the remaining allegations in the
plaintiff's complaint were "mere conclusory allegations."

FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT (FIRM OFFER OF
CREDIT & ATTORNEYS' FEES)

Yeagley v. Wells Fargo & Cp2010 WL 2077013 (N.D.
Cal. May 20, 2010)

The defendants sent class members unsolicited mailings
offering loans. The plaintiffs brought a class action under
the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), alleging that the
defendants had failed to provide firm offers of credit
because the offers did not state the definitive amount of
credit being offered or the interest rate on that credit. The
class reached a settlement with the defendants, and class
counsel requested $1.5 million in attorneys' fees. The court
declined the request, and using the common fund method,
awarded class counsel an award of $326,000.00. Class
counsel appealed the award, and the Ninth Circuit Court of
Appeals reversed, holding that the fees should have been
calculated using the lodestar method. Class counsel again
moved for fees, claiming 2,100.2 hours litigating the case
at $461.39 per hour, for a total fee of $969,017.00. The
court disagreed, finding the hourly rate reasonable but
reducing the hours to 720 hours. The court explained that
the plaintiffs' case was "exceedingly weak" because the
solicitations did not violate the FCRA in that FCRA does
not require that a solicitation include the amount of credit
offered or the interest rate to qualify as a firm offer of
credit; that counsel had obtained "extremely poor results”
because it had obtained none of the relief sought in the
complaint and had instead settled for an agreement to
provide the plaintiffs with two tri-merged credit reports,
something "virtually worthless" to the class members. In
further explaining the award of 720 hours, the court
explained that a reasonable lawyer might work one month
on the case, might have spent one to two months pursuing
such a lackluster settlement, and might have spent one
(Continued on page 9)



month distributing the settlement. Accordingly, the cour
awarded the plaintiffs' counsel $332,202.76 in attorney
fees and $33,091.68 in unreimbursed expenses.

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(DEFAULT JUDGMENT)

Kajbos v. Maximum Recover Solutions, In2010 WL
2035788 (D. Ariz. May 20, 2010)

The defendant repeatedly contacted the plaintiffs vi
telephone, threatened legal action, failed to make requiré
disclosures and generally engaged in objectionable de
collection practices. The plaintiffs suffered "a great deal
distress and mental anguish.” The plaintiffs brought su
under several provisions of the Fair Debt Collection
Practices Act (FDCPA), seeking statutory damages ¢
$1,000.00 per plaintiff, actual damages, attorneys' fees, a
costs. The defendant did not enter an appearance or ans
the suit in any way. The plaintiffs subsequently moved fo
a default judgment and an award of statutory damage
actual damages of $5,000.00 per plaintiff, attorneys' fee
and costs. The court analyzed the motion applying th
factors laid out in Eitel v. McCoplr82 F.2d 1470 (9th Cir.
1986), finding that: (1) the plaintiffs would suffergjudice

if not granted relief because they would be without othe
recourse for recovery; (2) the plaintiffs had adequately ple
violations of the FDCPA; (3) the defendant's failure tg
answer constituted an admission; (4) the plaintiffs' damagg

request were appropriate given the unrebutted allegationsi

the complaint; (5) there were no disputes concernin
material facts in the case; (6) there was nothing suggesti
excusable neglect had caused the default; and (7) t
seventh _Eitelfactor did not preclude default judgment
given Fed. R. Civ. P. 55(b). The court also determined th
the damages and fee requests were either explicit
mentioned in the complaint or flowed naturally from it.
Accordingly, the court granted the plaintiffs' motion for
default judgment.

10TH CIRCUIT DECISIONS

-

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(DAMAGES)
Jackson v. Diversified Collection Servs., I?010 WL
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1931013 (D. Colo. May 13, 2010)

The defendant debt collector attempted to collect on a debt
from the plaintiff by collection letter. When those efforts
were unsuccessful because the plaintiff refused to pay, the
defendant, having been given the plaintiff's work telephone
number, called him there five times. The plaintiff also
initiated telephone calls to the defendant. The plaintiff
subsequently brought suit under 15 U.S.C. 88 1692&¢€169
(2)(A), 1692e(4), 1692e(5), 1692e(10), 1692f, 1692c)a)(1
1692d and 1692c(a)(3) of the Fair Debt Collection
Practices Act (FDCPA). Immediately before trial, the
plaintiff withdrew his claims for actual damages. At the
close of evidence, the court granted a motion to dismiss all
but the 88 1692c(a)(1), 1692d and 1692c(a)(3) claims.
The jury returned a verdict for the plaintiff under FDCPA
88 1692c(a)(1) and 1692d, and the plaintiff subsequently
moved for $1,000.00 in statutory damages under FDCPA
8§ 1692k(a)(2)(A). The judge determined that only a

Vel "meager damage award" was merited, reasoning that: (1)

the defendant's actions were limited in number and
duration; (2) the plaintiff had given the defendant hiskwor
number and his supervisor had invited the defendant to call
back at a time when the plaintiff would be working; and (3)
there was very little or no evidence of actual harm.
Accordingly, the court awarded statutory damages of
$10.00 and "costs."

1TH CIRCUIT
DECISIONS

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(HARASSMENT)

Tucker v. CBE Group, Inc2010 WL 1849034 (M.D. Fla.
May 5, 2010)

The plaintiff's adult daughter, who was living in the
plaintiff's home, was the target of fifty-seven phone calls
by the defendant debt collector. However, there were never
more than seven calls on any given day and the defendant
never called back on the same day after leaving a voice
message. The plaintiff brought action against the debt
collector alleging that it violated the Fair Debt Collection
Practices Act (FDCPA) in connection with its attempts to
collect debt from his daughter. Specifically, the plaintiff
alleged that the defendant violated the FDCPA by making
(Continued on page 10)



harassing phone calls and by seeking to collect a debt not
owed. The plaintiff sought statutory damages, actual
damages, costs, fees, and a declaratory judgment.
defendant moved for summary judgment. The court hel
that there was no evidence that the debt collector engaged
in oppressive conduct and determined that the defendant
did not violate the FDCPA. In addition, the defendan
argued that the plaintiff and his attorneys brought ¢hise

in bad faith and for the purpose of harassment without any
basis for the complaint's allegations. The court found that
the plaintiff and his attorney unreasonably exhibited
deliberate indifference to obvious facts. The cour
determined that the defendant was entitled to recover
attorney's fees from the plaintiff and his attorney forkwvo
done on all of the claims in this case.

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(HARASSING COMMUNICATIONS)

Shuler v. Ingram & Assoc2010 WL 1838626 (N.D. Ala.
May 7, 2010)

A debt collector assumed the responsibility for collecting
debt from a husband and wife. The debt collector calle
the husband at work and its employee was alleged|y
"testy,” "abusive" and "smart-alecky." Furthermore, th
debt collector allegedly made misrepresentations as to hqw
it acquired the debt and how it would pursue collection
the debt. As a result, the two consumers brought actign
against the debt collector, alleging violations of the Fai
Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA) and a number o
Alabama state law claims. The defendant moved far
summary judgment on the claims. The court determined
that: (1) the collector's initial demand provided the retpiisi
validation notice; (2) the collector's employees did not us
abusive language; (3) the collector did not make phone
calls to annoy, abuse, or harass the consumers; (4)
collector did not make a false, deceptive, or misleading
representation; (5) the collector did not threaten the
consumers; (6) the collector did not make unfair of
unconscionable statements; (7) the collector did not make
fraudulent misrepresentations; and (8) the collector did not
impermissibly intrude on the consumers' solitude ang
seclusion. Accordingly, the court granted the defendantfs
motion for summary judgment.

FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT (PREEMPTION)
Sigler v. RBC Bank USA2010 WL 1904332 (M.D. Ala.
May 10, 2010)

A purported victim of identity theft brought action against
a bank, the bank's branch president, the alleged perpetrator
of the identity theft, and credit reporting agencies, alleging
violations of the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), Truth
in Lending Act (TILA), and a myriad of Alabama state law
claims including invasion of privacy and defamation. The
bank and the alleged perpetrator moved to dismiss the
invasion of privacy and defamation claims for failure tg

state a claim upon which relief could be granted pursuant to
Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6). The defendants argued that the
FCRA preempted the state law causes of action. The court
held that the FCRA did indeed preempt these two state law
claims. In coming to its conclusion, the court reasoned that
these state law claims were explicitly preempted by 15
U.S.C. 8§ 1681t(b)(1)(F) because the allegation concerned
the furnishing of inaccurate information. Furthermore, the
plaintiff's contention that 15 U.S.C. § 1681h(e) allowed
him to bring his state law claims was also denied by the
court because it determined that the bank was not a
consumer reporting agency or a user of information, but
rather a furnisher of information. Accordingly, the court
granted the defendants’ motion to dismiss with respect to
the plaintiff's Alabama state law claims of invasion of
privacy and defamation.

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
(NECESSARY PLEADINGS)

Polk v. Law Office of Curtis O. Barne2010 WL 1994093
(M.D. Ala. May 17, 2010)

The defendant called the plaintiff on the plaintiff's cellular
phone and at his workplace in an attempt to collect a debt
owed to a retailer. The plaintiff brought suit under the Fa
Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA) and Alabama law,
alleging that the defendant had attempted to embarrass and
intimidate him and had used information about his job on
an offshore oil rig in an illegal and improper manner. The
defendant moved to dismiss for failure to state a claim
under Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6), arguing that the pldintif
had not alleged facts showing a violation of the FDCPA.
The court agreed, finding that the complaint was "largely
comprised of conclusory allegations" without the required
factual support, that the complaint was unclear, and that the
complaint lacked allegations relating to the number,
frequency, content, or pattern of calls from the defendant.
Accordingly, the court granted the defendant's motion to
dismiss.






